
Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 23, 2022 Draft Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Approval Of Special Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYSPECIALMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Gobin)

Request for Variance, submitted by Brock Gobin (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet into the bluff 

impact zone. Parcel 45.026.1401. 3884 Sogn Valley Trail Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the 

W ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 26 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township. A -2 Zoned 

District.  

BOAPACKET_GOBIN_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Grobe)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mason Grobe (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition and associated 

grading/excavation 8.76-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 32.035.1300. 34582 335th 

ST Lake City, MN 55041. The NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 35 TWP 112 Range 13 in 

Florence Township. A-2 Zoned District.

BOAPACKET_GROBE.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Jackson)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mitchell Jackson (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Standards) to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30-feet from the top of 

a bluff and grading/excavation for a retaining wall within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 

46.028.2101. 14417 Welch Trail Welch, MN 55089. The N ½ and Part of the S ½ of the 

NW ¼ of Section 28 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 Zoned District. 

BOAPACKET_JACKSON.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Fox)

Request for Variance, submitted by Cindy Fox (Applicant) on behalf of the Gerald Fox Liv 

Trust (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) to allow construction of an accessory 

building less than 30-feet from the top of a bluff and grading/excavation for a dwelling site 

within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 46.021.0700. TBD County 7 BLVD Welch, MN 55089. 

Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 21 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 

Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_FOX_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Voth)

Request for Variance, submitted by Grant Voth (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) 

to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet from the top and toe of a bluff and 

grading/excavation 12-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 34.001.1000. 28935 Circle S 

Road Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 01 TWP 112 Range 

14 in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_VOTH_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Maximum Accessory Building Size

Request for Variance, submitted by Jeff Davis (Owner), to R-1 Zoning District standards to 

allow construction of an accessory structure greater than 2100 square feet. Parcel 

41.018.0202. 867 Sciota Trail Randolph, MN 55065. Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of 

Section 18 TWP 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

BOAPACKET_DAVIS_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://mn-goodhuecounty.civicplus.com/


Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 23, 2022 Draft Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Approval Of Special Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYSPECIALMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Gobin)

Request for Variance, submitted by Brock Gobin (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet into the bluff 

impact zone. Parcel 45.026.1401. 3884 Sogn Valley Trail Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the 

W ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 26 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township. A -2 Zoned 

District.  

BOAPACKET_GOBIN_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Grobe)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mason Grobe (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition and associated 

grading/excavation 8.76-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 32.035.1300. 34582 335th 

ST Lake City, MN 55041. The NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 35 TWP 112 Range 13 in 

Florence Township. A-2 Zoned District.

BOAPACKET_GROBE.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Jackson)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mitchell Jackson (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Standards) to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30-feet from the top of 

a bluff and grading/excavation for a retaining wall within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 

46.028.2101. 14417 Welch Trail Welch, MN 55089. The N ½ and Part of the S ½ of the 

NW ¼ of Section 28 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 Zoned District. 

BOAPACKET_JACKSON.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Fox)

Request for Variance, submitted by Cindy Fox (Applicant) on behalf of the Gerald Fox Liv 

Trust (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) to allow construction of an accessory 

building less than 30-feet from the top of a bluff and grading/excavation for a dwelling site 

within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 46.021.0700. TBD County 7 BLVD Welch, MN 55089. 

Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 21 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 

Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_FOX_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Voth)

Request for Variance, submitted by Grant Voth (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) 

to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet from the top and toe of a bluff and 

grading/excavation 12-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 34.001.1000. 28935 Circle S 

Road Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 01 TWP 112 Range 

14 in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_VOTH_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Maximum Accessory Building Size

Request for Variance, submitted by Jeff Davis (Owner), to R-1 Zoning District standards to 

allow construction of an accessory structure greater than 2100 square feet. Parcel 

41.018.0202. 867 Sciota Trail Randolph, MN 55065. Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of 

Section 18 TWP 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

BOAPACKET_DAVIS_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Goodhue County Board of Adjustment

Government Center- Board Room

509 West 5th St, Red Wing MN 55066

Call Meeting To Order

Approval Of Current Agenda

Approval Of Previous Month's Meeting Minutes

May 23, 2022 Draft Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Approval Of Special Meeting Minutes

BOAMEETINGMINUTES_MAYSPECIALMEETING_DRAFT.PDF

Conflict/Disclosure Of Interests

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Gobin)

Request for Variance, submitted by Brock Gobin (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet into the bluff 

impact zone. Parcel 45.026.1401. 3884 Sogn Valley Trail Dennison, MN 55018. Part of the 

W ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 26 TWP 111 Range 18 in Warsaw Township. A -2 Zoned 

District.  

BOAPACKET_GOBIN_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Grobe)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mason Grobe (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition and associated 

grading/excavation 8.76-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 32.035.1300. 34582 335th 

ST Lake City, MN 55041. The NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 35 TWP 112 Range 13 in 

Florence Township. A-2 Zoned District.

BOAPACKET_GROBE.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Jackson)

Request for Variance, submitted by Mitchell Jackson (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland 

Standards) to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30-feet from the top of 

a bluff and grading/excavation for a retaining wall within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 

46.028.2101. 14417 Welch Trail Welch, MN 55089. The N ½ and Part of the S ½ of the 

NW ¼ of Section 28 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 Zoned District. 

BOAPACKET_JACKSON.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Fox)

Request for Variance, submitted by Cindy Fox (Applicant) on behalf of the Gerald Fox Liv 

Trust (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) to allow construction of an accessory 

building less than 30-feet from the top of a bluff and grading/excavation for a dwelling site 

within the bluff impact zone. Parcel 46.021.0700. TBD County 7 BLVD Welch, MN 55089. 

Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 21 TWP 113 Range 16 in Welch Township. A -2 

Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_FOX_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Bluffland Standards (Voth)

Request for Variance, submitted by Grant Voth (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Standards) 

to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet from the top and toe of a bluff and 

grading/excavation 12-feet into the bluff impact zone. Parcel 34.001.1000. 28935 Circle S 

Road Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 01 TWP 112 Range 

14 in Hay Creek Township. A-2 Zoned District.  

BOAPACKET_VOTH_REDACTED.PDF

PUBLIC HEARING: Request For Variance To Maximum Accessory Building Size

Request for Variance, submitted by Jeff Davis (Owner), to R-1 Zoning District standards to 

allow construction of an accessory structure greater than 2100 square feet. Parcel 

41.018.0202. 867 Sciota Trail Randolph, MN 55065. Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of 

Section 18 TWP 112 Range 18 in Stanton Township. 

BOAPACKET_DAVIS_REDACTED.PDF

Other-Discussion

Adjourn

Anyone interested is invited to attend. Agenda items may be subject to change. 

Goodhue County Land Use Management

w  Goodhue County Government Center w  509 West Fifth Street w  Red Wing w  Minnesota w  55066 w

w  Building w Planning w  Zoning w  Telephone: 651/385 -3104 w Fax: 651/385 -3106 w

1.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

https://co.goodhue.mn.us/a4536ad2-a3aa-496d-9ad2-e0b8b4d50d42


BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 23, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chair Daniel 
Knott at the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Keith Allen, Darwin Fox, Denny Tebbe, and Randy 
Rechtzigel   

Commissioners Absent: None    

Staff Present: Land Use Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning Assistant 
Alexandra Koberoski, and Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field  

1. Approval of Agenda 

      1Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Tebbe to approve the meeting agenda. 
 

Motion carried 5:0 

2. Approval of Minutes  

2Motion by Commissioner Tebbe and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. 

  
Motion carried 5:0  

 
3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 

 
There were no conflicts of interest reported.   

   
4.  Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance from Lisa Shoberg-Weiner and Allen Weiner (Owners) to A-
1 Zoning District standards to construct a dwelling addition less than 60-feet from the County 12 BLVD 
Right-of-Way. Parcel 30.008.0100. 7850 County 12 BLVD Kenyon, MN 55946. Part of the NE ¼ of the 
NE ¼ & E ½ of NW ¼ of NE ¼ Section 8 TWP 109 Range 17 in Cherry Grove Township. 
 
Koberoski presented the staff report and attachments.  

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request. 
3After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox 
and seconded by Commissioner          Rechtzigel to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Commissioner Tebbe stated this is pretty straight forward and certainly is not going to encroach on the 
right-of-way.  He agrees with staff recommendation to support this variance.   
 
4Motion by Fox, seconded by Tebbe, for the Board of Adjustment to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 23, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Lisa Shoberg-Weiner & Allen Weiner (Owners) to A-
1 Zoning District standards to construct a 48-foot 6-inch by 12-foot 2-inch bedroom/kitchen addition no 
less than 56-feet from the County 12 BLVD Right-of-Way.  
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance from Terry and Sarah Cox (Owners) to R-1 Zoning District 
standards to reconfigure parcel lines resulting in a 0.28-acre parcel containing a dwelling site where 1-acre is 
required. Parcel 32.015.1700. 33583 Hwy 61 BLVD Frontenac, MN 55026. Part of the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ 
Section 15 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence Township. 

Koberoski presented the staff report and attachments. 

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request.  
5After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox 
and seconded by Commissioner          Allen to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Commissioner Tebbe stated he has driven by and it does not appear there have been any changes to the 
mobile home park.  No park changes should be done unless there is approval to amend the Conditional 
Use Permit (CUP). 
6Motion by Tebbe, seconded by Rechtzigel, for the Board of Adjustment to: 
• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Terry & Sarah Cox (Owners) to R-1 minimum 
lot size standards to establish a separate tax parcel for an existing dwelling no less than 0.28-acres in 
size. 

Motion carried 5:0 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Todd Kuyath (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition 45-feet into the bluff 
impact zone. 
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments. 
 
Commissioner Tebbe asked about the exhibit that states bluffs must average greater than a 30% slope 
and 25 feet of rise above the toe.  It is shown at a 29.5% grade.  Should we adopt exhibit into record 
knowing it is currently at almost a 30% grade?   
 
Pierret stated that this exhibit was brought to staff by the Applicant and the contractor’s surveyor.    
Zoning and Soil and Water District (SWCD) staff do not necessarily agree with this exhibit based on 
additional parts of the definition of top and toe of bluff, where bluffs are considered present if the slope 
is 20% or greater.  We have to consider this part of the toe of the bluff.  
 
Commissioner Tebbe asked if we adopt this into record will it cause issues?  Would the same be true of 
the exhibit with the hatching showing 20% slopes around the building? 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 23, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

3 

 

 

 
Pierret stated that the hatching is based on GIS and LIDAR data however this data is not always 100% 
accurate.  What is more accurate is staff going to the property and viewing the contours to verify 
slopes. GIS and LIDAR data may not pick up every break in slope, which is why we do site visits to 
verify the slopes.   
 
Commissioner Knott stated he did not see 29.7% referred to anywhere in the exhibits.   
 
Pierret stated it is difficult to see but the annotation is present on the first map provided by the 
Applicant. The dotted line was the line prepared by the Applicant’s surveyor and zoning and Soil and 
Water District staff did not agree with this interpretation that the area did not qualify as a bluff.   
 
Commissioner Knott asked if Soil and Water provided the definition of the toe of the bluff and whether   
it was shown as a blue line?   
 
Pierret stated that Beau Kennedy, SWCD Director provided the exhibit with the blue line.  Based off the 
site visit, it appears the bluff does not go through the house.  The toe of the bluff is behind the house 
based on what was seen during the site visit.   
 
Commissioner Knott asked if the garage that is being added will  be behind the house at the same 
elevation as the siding or even with the lower entry level? 
 
Pierret stated that the part closest to the house will be used to create additional basement space but as 
you move NW it will be at the grade with the siding.     

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Cohlman Rutschow (22770 320th ST Red Wing), stated he supports Mr. Kuyath’s request.   
7After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox and 
seconded by Commissioner          Rechtzigel to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Commissioner Fox thanked the staff for being so diligent and recognizing the area qualified as 
bluffland.  He added that he supports this request as long as it is constructed correctly and Mr. Kuyath 
works with the Soil and Water District during construction to prevent erosion. 
 
Commissioner Tebbe agrees with Commissioner Fox.  The proposed location keeps the structure away 
from the agricultural land.  The applicant has also indicated he would adjust as needed and seems very 
accommodating.   
8Motion by Fox, seconded by Tebbe, for the Board of Adjustment to: 
• adopt the staff report into the record; 
• adopt the findings of fact; 
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Todd Kuyath (Owner) to Bluffland protection 
standards to allow construction of a dwelling addition and associated excavation/grading of land 45- 
feet into the bluff impact zone. 
 
Motion Carried 5:0 
 
                                                        
 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 23, 2022 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 
                                              

4 

 

 

5. Other-Discussion  

A reminder that there is a Special Board of Adjustment Meeting on Tuesday, May 31st at 5pm.   

Applicant Joshua Plath has withdrawn his request for variance in Hay Creek Township.  

ADJOURN 
9Motion by Allen, seconded by Rechtzigel to adjourn the BOA meeting at 5:37 pm.  

Motion carried 5:0 

Respectfully submitted:   
Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 

 MOTIONS 
 

1 APPROVE the meeting agenda.                                                                                                                    
Motion carried 5:0 
2 APPROVE the previous meeting’s minutes.  
 Motion carried 5:0  
3Close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 
4APPROVE the Variance request to A-1 Zoning District standards to construct a 48-foot 6-inch by 12-foot 2-inch bedroom/kitchen 
addition no less than 56-feet from the County 12 BLVD Right-of-Way.  
Motion carried 5:0 
5Close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 
6APPROVE the Variance request to R-1 minimum lot size standards to establish a separate tax parcel for an existing dwelling no less 
than 0.28-acres in size. 
Motion carried 5:0  
7CLOSE the Public Hearing                                                                                                                   
Motion carried 5:0 
8APPROVE the Variance request to Bluffland protection standards to allow construction of a dwelling addition and 
associated excavation/grading of land 45-feet into the bluff impact zone.   
Motion carried 5:0 
9ADJOURN. 
 Motion carried 5:0 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 31, 2022 SPECIAL MEETING 
MINUTES DRAFT 

 
 

 
                                              

1 

 

 

 
The meeting of the Goodhue County Board of Adjustment was called to order at 5:00 PM by Chair Daniel 
Knott at the Goodhue County Government Center Board Room.   

Roll Call  

Commissioners Present: Daniel Knott, Keith Allen, Darwin Fox, Denny Tebbe, and Randy 
Rechtzigel   

Commissioners Absent: None    

Staff Present: Zoning Administrator Samantha Pierret, Zoning Assistant Alexandra Koberoski, and 
Zoning Administrative Assistant Patty Field  

1. Approval of Agenda 

      1Motion by Commissioner Fox and seconded by Commissioner Rechtzigel to approve the meeting 
agenda. 

 
Motion carried 5:0 

  
2. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest 

 
There were no conflicts of interest reported.   

   
3.  Public Hearings:  
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Cohlman Rutschow (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition less than 30-feet from the 
toe of a bluff. Parcel 31.023.1100. 22770 320th ST Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SW ¼ of the SE ¼ of 
Section 23 TWP 112 Range 15 in Featherstone Township. A2 Zoned District. 
 
Pierret presented the staff report and attachments.  

Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing 

No one spoke for or against the request. 
2After Chair Knott asked three times for comments it was moved by Commissioner Fox 
and seconded by Commissioner          Allen to close the Public Hearing. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 
Commissioner Tebbe stated this is a pretty tight area and they are doing the best that they can to lessen 
the impacts and that he supports the variance.   
 
3Motion by Tebbe, seconded by Rechtzigel, for the Board of Adjustment to: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 



BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

 May 31, 2022 SPECIAL MEETING 
MINUTES DRAFT 

 
 

 
                                              

2 

 

 

 
APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Cohlman Rutschow (Owner) to Bluffland 
protection standards to allow construction of a dwelling addition no less than 28.5-feet from the toe 
of a bluff. 
 
Motion carried 5:0 
 

ADJOURN 
4Motion by Fox, seconded by Tebbe to adjourn the BOA meeting at 5:07 pm.  

Motion carried 5:0 

Respectfully submitted:   
Patty Field, Zoning Administrative Assistant 
 

 MOTIONS 
 

1 APPROVE the meeting agenda.                                                                                                                    
Motion carried 5:0 
2 Close the Public Hearing 
Motion carried 5:0 
3APPROVE the Variance request to to Article 12 (Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition less than 
30-feet from the toe of a bluff. 
Motion carried 5:0 
4ADJOURN. 
 Motion carried 5:0 
 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Brock Gobin (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8-feet into the bluff 
impact zone.     
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Brock Gobin (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 3884 Sogn Valley Trail, Dennison, MN 55018 
Parcel: 45.026.1401 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 01 TWP 112 Range 14 in 
Warsaw Township 
Township Information: Warsaw Township has signed acknowledgement of the variance request and 
did not convey any concerns regarding the application.  
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
GCZO Article 12 Bluffland Protection Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Brock Gobin (Owner) has applied for a variance to Bluffland Protection Standards to construct a 
replacement dwelling 4-feet from the top of a bluff where 30-feet is required and grading/excavating 
8-feet into the bluff impact zone to accommodate a proposed deck.  
 
The previous mobile home was moved onto the property sometime between 1980 and 1991 (based on 
historical GIS imagery). Staff was unable to locate a building or zoning permit for the dwelling in our 
records. A septic installation permit was found from 1990. The previous mobile home was too close 
to the south property line. The proposed replacement dwelling will meet GCZO property line 
setbacks.  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 

 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Bluffland setbacks and restrictions on grading/excavating in the bluff impact zone are 
intended to preserve and protect the sensitive physical features of the Bluffs by regulating 
development, preventing erosion, and controlling the cutting of timber on the slopes and tops 
of bluffs.  

 The Applicant expressed willingness to abide by best management practices when 
constructing the replacement dwelling and performing grading/excavation work. 

The request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official controls.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports providing more housing choices for rural 
residents and flexible dwelling choices.  

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes protecting and conserving natural 
landscapes and utilizing best management practices to enhance the health of environmentally 
sensitive areas.  

The proposed replacement dwelling appears consistent with the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan if best management practices are used to prevent excessive erosion.  

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s desire to construct a replacement dwelling is a reasonable use of property in 
the A-2 District.  

 The parcel is an existing 5.29-acre lot which is a conforming lot size in the A-2 Zoning District 
(2-acre minimum).  

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the replacement dwelling due 
to the existing topography, the installation of a new septic system, and providing adequate 
space for a new driveway. (Photos 1,2, and 3 indicate the location of the south property line). 

 Chad Hildebrand from the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District reviewed 
the proposal and assisted staff in determining the location of the top of the bluff. Mr. 
Hildebrand did not identify any issues concerning the potential for erosion or negative 
impacts to the physical features of the bluff.  In regards to Best Management Practices he 
stated, “Would install a silt fence or use of an erosion control BMP at the top of the bluff 
area/slope to help prevent any sediment erosion before beginning work, and to seed any 
bare areas with vegetation within 3 days if sat idle on the construction site. Also, be aware 
of heavy rain events and make sure to stabilize soil overall.” 

SWCD staff and Zoning staff will review the building permit application for compliance with 
bluffland protection standards and establishment of best management practices prior to 
construction. 
 

 The property is surrounded by Blufflands/woodlands in all directions. Surrounding land uses 
include feedlots and row-crop agriculture zoned A-2 (General Agriculture District) to the 
north, east, and south and A-1 (Agricultural Protection District) to the west.  

The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Replacement dwellings are a permissible use in the A-2 Zoning District. The request does not 
constitute a use variance.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 
The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance 
 
     Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Brock Gobin (Owner) to Bluffland protection 
standards to allow construction of a replacement dwelling and associated excavation/grading of land 
8-feet into the bluff impact zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

ARTICLE 12   BLUFF LAND PROTECTION 

SECTION 1.    INTENT AND PURPOSE 
Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the bluffs that line the many rivers 

and valleys of the County.  These standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 

features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion and controlling the cutting of 

timber on the slopes and tops of the bluffs. 

SECTION 2.    SCOPE 
These standards shall regulate the setback of structures, sanitary waste treatment facilities and row 

crops from bluff impact zones to protect the existing and/or natural scenic values, significant 

historic sites, vegetation, soils, water and bedrock from disruption by man-made structures or 

facilities.  These standards will also regulate alterations of the natural vegetation and topography. 

Subd. 1. BLUFF.  A natural topographic feature such as a hill, cliff, or embankment having the 

following characteristics:  

A. The slope rises at least twenty-five (25) feet above the toe of the bluff; and  

B. The grade of the slope from the toe of the bluff to a point twenty-five (25) feet or 

more above the toe of the bluff averages thirty (30) percent or greater;  

C. An area with an average slope of less than twenty (20) percent over a horizontal 

distance of fifty (50) feet shall not be considered part of the bluff. 

Subd. 2. BLUFF IMPACT ZONE.  All of the land lying between the top of the bluff and the 

toe of the bluff. 

Subd. 3. SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC SITE.  Any archaeological site, standing structure, or 

other property that meets the criteria for eligibility to the National Register of Historic 

Places or is listed in the State Register of Historic Sites, or is determined to be an 

unplatted cemetery that falls under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 

307.08.  A historic site meets these criteria if it is presented listed on either register or 

if it is determined to meet the qualifications for listing after review by the Minnesota 

State Archaeologist or the Director of the Minnesota Historical Society. All unplatted 

cemeteries are automatically considered to be significant historic sites. 

Subd. 4. TOE OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from gentler to steeper slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the toe of the bluff shall be determined to be the lowest end of 

the lowest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 5. TOP OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from steeper to gentler slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the top of the bluff shall be determined to be the highest end 

of the highest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 6. VISUALLY INCONSPICUOUS.  Difficult to be seen and not readily noticeable 

from any point on the river or valley during the time when the leaves are on the 

deciduous trees. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

SECTION 3.    BOUNDARIES 
Subd. 1. The bluff land protection area shall include all areas with the following soil types as 

determined by the Goodhue County Soil Survey: 

A. N634E - Massbach-Schapville complex,18-35% slopes 

B. N598E - Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 18-35% slopes 

C. N594E - Chelsea loamy sand, 12-35% slopes 

D. N553E - Frankville-Nasset-Mt. Carroll complex, 18-35% slopes 

E. N635E - Frankville-Nasset-Downs complex, 18-35% slopes 

F. N642E - Frankville-Nasset complex, Oneota formation, 18-35% slopes 

G. N609E - Hawick sandy loam, 18-45% slopes 

H. M516E - Wangs-Wagen Prairie complex, 18-35% slopes 

I. M537E - Meridian-Bassett complex, 18-35% slopes 

J. N526F - Gale-Oak Center complex, 18-45% slopes 

K. M540F - Frontenac-Bellechester complex, 18-45% slopes 

L. N639F - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 20-45% slopes 

M. N631E - Schapville silt loam, 18-35% slopes 

N. N580G - Brodale, very flaggy-Bellechester-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% 

slopes 

O. N632G - Brodale, flaggy-Schapville complex, 18-80% slopes 

P. N638G - Brodale, flaggy-Bellechester complex, 30-70% slopes 

Q. N640G - Lacrescent, flaggy-Frontenac-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% slopes 

R. N641F - Brodale channery loam, 20-45% slopes, flaggy 

S. N639G - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 30-70% slopes 

T. M539F - Bellechester loamy sand, 18-45% slopes 

SECTION 4.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Developments and other land disturbing activities including: structures, accessory 

facilities, driveways, and parking areas shall not be placed within bluff impact zones 

except the following: 

A. Stairways and landings subject to provisions set forth in Subd. 6, of this Section.   

B. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths subject to provisions set forth in 

Subd. 6, of this Section.   

C. Uses identified in Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 1 

Subd. 2. Setback from top or toe of the bluff to any structure in any district shall be no less than 

thirty (30) feet. Exceptions may include structures allowed under Article 30, Section 

3, Subdivisions 6, 12, and 13. 

Subd. 3. The maximum height of any structure shall be twenty-five (25) feet from the highest 

natural grade touching foundation. Exceptions may include structures allowed under 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

the following provisions:  Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 13.  

Height for structures that may be permitted within bluff impact zones under these 

provisions shall be set forth within Conditional or Interim Use Permits 

Subd. 4. No person may begin a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying 

activity within three hundred (300) feet of the toe or top of a bluff without a 

conditional use permit. 

Subd. 5. Towers as defined in Article 17 (Wireless Communication Facilities) must be located 

outside of bluff impact zones and shall be subject to a minimum setback of 1.1 times 

the height of the tower from the top of a bluff and a minimum of 30 feet from the toe 

of a bluff. 

Subd. 6. All stairways and lifts on bluffs and in shoreland areas shall be visually inconspicuous.  

Stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 

A. Stairways and lifts must not exceed four (4) feet in width on residential lots. 

B. Landings for stairways and lifts on residential lots must not exceed thirty-two 

(32) square feet in area.  Landings larger than thirty-two (32) square feet may be 

used for public open space recreational properties. 

C. Canopies or roofs are not allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings. 

D. Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on 

posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, provided they are designed and built 

in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 

E. Stairways, lifts, and landings must be located in the most visually inconspicuous 

portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public water assuming 

Summer, leaf on conditions, whenever practical. 

F. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths are also allowed for achieving 

access to shore areas, provided that the dimensional and performance standards 

of sub-items A-E are complied with in addition to the requirements of the 

Minnesota Accessibility Code. 

Subd. 7. No grading, excavating or filling (including Mineral Extraction) within the bluff 

impact zones, except for approved erosion control measures.  Erosion control projects 

within the bluff impact zone shall comply with A. and B. below: 

A. Altered areas shall be stabilized to acceptable erosion control standards 

consistent with the field office technical guides of the Goodhue Soil and Water 

Conservation District and the USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

B. Plans to place fill or excavated materials in bluff impact zones shall be prepared 

by qualified professional for continued slope stability, and approved by Land 

Use Management.  All costs to be born by the applicant. 

Subd. 8. The top or toe of bluffs shall be certified by a Minnesota Licensed Land Surveyor or 

Zoning Administrator. 

Subd. 9. Vegetation Alterations.  Vegetation alterations shall be subject to the standards found 

in Article 11, Section 7 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance.

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 3 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Mason Grobe (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a dwelling addition approximately 9-feet 
into the bluff impact zone.     
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Mason Grobe (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 34582 335th ST Lake City, MN 55041 
Parcel: 32.035.1300 
Abbreviated Legal Description: The NE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 35 TWP 112 Range 13 in Florence 
Township 
Township Information: Florence Township approved a bluff setback variance for the project at their 
May 16, 2022 meeting.    
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
GCZO Article 12 Bluffland Protection Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Mason Grobe (Owner) has applied for a variance to Bluffland Protection Standards to construct a 30-
foot x 40-foot dwelling addition and perform grading/excavation work 9-feet into the bluff impact 
zone. The existing dwelling was legally constructed approximately 10-feet from the toe of the bluff in 
1984 with a patio constructed along the toe of the bluff. Bluffland regulations were not added to the 
County’s Zoning Ordinance until the 1990s.  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Bluffland setbacks and restrictions on grading/excavating in the bluff impact zone are 
intended to preserve and protect the sensitive physical features of the Bluffs by regulating 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 3 

development, preventing erosion, and controlling the cutting of timber on the slopes and tops 
of bluffs.  

 The proposed location of the dwelling addition was chosen to accommodate direct access into 
a proposed second story addition (no stairs) and to avoid the septic tanks located to the east 
of the dwelling and the drainfield located north of the dwelling. An addition to the north side 
of the dwelling would have required a greater variance to bluffland setbacks than the 
proposed location.  

 The dwelling is located in an A-2 zoned section where a maximum of 12 dwellings are 
permitted to be established, one per original ¼ ¼ section. Section 35 currently has 7 
dwellings.   

 The Applicant expressed willingness to abide by best management practices when 
constructing the addition and performing grading/excavation work.  

The request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official controls.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports providing more housing choices for rural 
residents and flexible dwelling choices.  

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes protecting and conserving natural 
landscapes and utilizing best management practices to enhance the health of environmentally 
sensitive areas.  

The proposed dwelling addition appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan if best management practices are used to prevent excessive erosion.  

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s desire to construct a dwelling addition is a reasonable use of property in the 
A-2 District.  

The proposed addition would be constructed approximately 9-feet into the bluff impact zone. 
The parcel is an existing 40-acre lot which is a conforming lot size in the A-2 Zoning District 
(2-acre minimum).  

 The existing dwelling was constructed in 1984 less than 30-feet from the toe of the bluff. The 
existing patio area was constructed around the same time at the toe of the bluff. Bluffland 
regulations were not added to the County’s Zoning Ordinance until the mid-1990s.   

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the addition due to the 
location of the septic tanks and drainfield, the desire to have direct access to the proposed 
second story, and the existing configuration of the dwelling.  

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Water Planner Chad Hildebrand 
attended a site visit with the owner and Zoning staff in January 2022 to determine the 
location of the toe of the bluff. Mr. Hildebrand noted that the proposed addition would not be 
detrimental to the bluff impact zone if best management practices were used to avoid 
excessive erosion including stabilizing areas of disturbance and installing drain tile to reroute 
incoming water around the proposed addition.  

SWCD staff and Zoning staff will review the building permit application for compliance with 
bluffland protection standards and establishment of best management practices prior to 
construction. 
 

 The dwelling is surrounded by Blufflands/woodlands to the north and west. Several acres of 
the parcel are used for row crop agriculture to the east and south.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 3 

The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Dwelling additions are a permissible use in the A-2 Zoning District. The request does not 
constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 
The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance 
 
     Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Mason Grobe (Owner) to Bluffland protection 
standards to allow construction of a dwelling addition and associated grading/excavation work 9-feet 
into the bluff impact zone. 
 
 













Goodhue County SWCD 
104 East 3rd Ave, P.O. Box 335 

Goodhue, MN 55027 
651-923-5286 Ext. 4 

www.goodhueswcd.org  
 
Date: Wednesday, April 13, 2022 
 
Subject: Mason Grobe - Florence Township, Section 35 (PIN 32.035.1300) 
 
 
 
January 21, 2022, completed a site visit on the property owned by Mason Grobe (PIN 32.035.1300) 
located in Florence Township, Section 35, Range 13 regarding the location of the bluff on the property. 
Present on the site visit was Goodhue SWCD, Goodhue County and the landowner. 
 

• Identified the Toe of Bluff on the property utilizing 2020 LIDAR for the county on 2-foot 
contours. Bluff meets county ordinance definition (Article 12, Section 2, Subd. 1). 

• Assisted landowner to identify the 30-foot setback area from the Toe of Bluff on the property. 
• Contributing watershed of woodland area to the proposed area is approximately 1.3 acres in 

size. 
• Existing retaining wall is located on the property to the west of the house which lines up as the 

toe of the bluff or appears to have been built into the bluff area in past years. 
 
From my professional opinion, if a new retaining wall or garage is located in the area proposed by the 
landowner, Mason Grobe, working with a licensed contractor or a professional who completes that 
type of work; to stabilize any area of disturbance and/or construct a structure to prevent future 
erosion concerns. Would recommend installing some type of drainage tile or other method to reroute 
any incoming water around the proposed structure and outlet it to the south or north of the house. A 
minimal amount of contributing water would be expected from the woodland area being 
approximately 1.3 acres.  
 
 
Sincerely,  

 
Natural Resource Specialist 
Goodhue SWCD 
childebrand@goodhueswcd.org  













Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

ARTICLE 12   BLUFF LAND PROTECTION 

SECTION 1.    INTENT AND PURPOSE 
Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the bluffs that line the many rivers 

and valleys of the County.  These standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 

features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion and controlling the cutting of 

timber on the slopes and tops of the bluffs. 

SECTION 2.    SCOPE 
These standards shall regulate the setback of structures, sanitary waste treatment facilities and row 

crops from bluff impact zones to protect the existing and/or natural scenic values, significant 

historic sites, vegetation, soils, water and bedrock from disruption by man-made structures or 

facilities.  These standards will also regulate alterations of the natural vegetation and topography. 

Subd. 1. BLUFF.  A natural topographic feature such as a hill, cliff, or embankment having the 

following characteristics:  

A. The slope rises at least twenty-five (25) feet above the toe of the bluff; and  

B. The grade of the slope from the toe of the bluff to a point twenty-five (25) feet or 

more above the toe of the bluff averages thirty (30) percent or greater;  

C. An area with an average slope of less than twenty (20) percent over a horizontal 

distance of fifty (50) feet shall not be considered part of the bluff. 

Subd. 2. BLUFF IMPACT ZONE.  All of the land lying between the top of the bluff and the 

toe of the bluff. 

Subd. 3. SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC SITE.  Any archaeological site, standing structure, or 

other property that meets the criteria for eligibility to the National Register of Historic 

Places or is listed in the State Register of Historic Sites, or is determined to be an 

unplatted cemetery that falls under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 

307.08.  A historic site meets these criteria if it is presented listed on either register or 

if it is determined to meet the qualifications for listing after review by the Minnesota 

State Archaeologist or the Director of the Minnesota Historical Society. All unplatted 

cemeteries are automatically considered to be significant historic sites. 

Subd. 4. TOE OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from gentler to steeper slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the toe of the bluff shall be determined to be the lowest end of 

the lowest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 5. TOP OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from steeper to gentler slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the top of the bluff shall be determined to be the highest end 

of the highest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 6. VISUALLY INCONSPICUOUS.  Difficult to be seen and not readily noticeable 

from any point on the river or valley during the time when the leaves are on the 

deciduous trees. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

SECTION 3.    BOUNDARIES 
Subd. 1. The bluff land protection area shall include all areas with the following soil types as 

determined by the Goodhue County Soil Survey: 

A. N634E - Massbach-Schapville complex,18-35% slopes 

B. N598E - Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 18-35% slopes 

C. N594E - Chelsea loamy sand, 12-35% slopes 

D. N553E - Frankville-Nasset-Mt. Carroll complex, 18-35% slopes 

E. N635E - Frankville-Nasset-Downs complex, 18-35% slopes 

F. N642E - Frankville-Nasset complex, Oneota formation, 18-35% slopes 

G. N609E - Hawick sandy loam, 18-45% slopes 

H. M516E - Wangs-Wagen Prairie complex, 18-35% slopes 

I. M537E - Meridian-Bassett complex, 18-35% slopes 

J. N526F - Gale-Oak Center complex, 18-45% slopes 

K. M540F - Frontenac-Bellechester complex, 18-45% slopes 

L. N639F - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 20-45% slopes 

M. N631E - Schapville silt loam, 18-35% slopes 

N. N580G - Brodale, very flaggy-Bellechester-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% 

slopes 

O. N632G - Brodale, flaggy-Schapville complex, 18-80% slopes 

P. N638G - Brodale, flaggy-Bellechester complex, 30-70% slopes 

Q. N640G - Lacrescent, flaggy-Frontenac-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% slopes 

R. N641F - Brodale channery loam, 20-45% slopes, flaggy 

S. N639G - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 30-70% slopes 

T. M539F - Bellechester loamy sand, 18-45% slopes 

SECTION 4.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Developments and other land disturbing activities including: structures, accessory 

facilities, driveways, and parking areas shall not be placed within bluff impact zones 

except the following: 

A. Stairways and landings subject to provisions set forth in Subd. 6, of this Section.   

B. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths subject to provisions set forth in 

Subd. 6, of this Section.   

C. Uses identified in Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 1 

Subd. 2. Setback from top or toe of the bluff to any structure in any district shall be no less than 

thirty (30) feet. Exceptions may include structures allowed under Article 30, Section 

3, Subdivisions 6, 12, and 13. 

Subd. 3. The maximum height of any structure shall be twenty-five (25) feet from the highest 

natural grade touching foundation. Exceptions may include structures allowed under 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

the following provisions:  Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 13.  

Height for structures that may be permitted within bluff impact zones under these 

provisions shall be set forth within Conditional or Interim Use Permits 

Subd. 4. No person may begin a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying 

activity within three hundred (300) feet of the toe or top of a bluff without a 

conditional use permit. 

Subd. 5. Towers as defined in Article 17 (Wireless Communication Facilities) must be located 

outside of bluff impact zones and shall be subject to a minimum setback of 1.1 times 

the height of the tower from the top of a bluff and a minimum of 30 feet from the toe 

of a bluff. 

Subd. 6. All stairways and lifts on bluffs and in shoreland areas shall be visually inconspicuous.  

Stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 

A. Stairways and lifts must not exceed four (4) feet in width on residential lots. 

B. Landings for stairways and lifts on residential lots must not exceed thirty-two 

(32) square feet in area.  Landings larger than thirty-two (32) square feet may be 

used for public open space recreational properties. 

C. Canopies or roofs are not allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings. 

D. Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on 

posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, provided they are designed and built 

in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 

E. Stairways, lifts, and landings must be located in the most visually inconspicuous 

portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public water assuming 

Summer, leaf on conditions, whenever practical. 

F. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths are also allowed for achieving 

access to shore areas, provided that the dimensional and performance standards 

of sub-items A-E are complied with in addition to the requirements of the 

Minnesota Accessibility Code. 

Subd. 7. No grading, excavating or filling (including Mineral Extraction) within the bluff 

impact zones, except for approved erosion control measures.  Erosion control projects 

within the bluff impact zone shall comply with A. and B. below: 

A. Altered areas shall be stabilized to acceptable erosion control standards 

consistent with the field office technical guides of the Goodhue Soil and Water 

Conservation District and the USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

B. Plans to place fill or excavated materials in bluff impact zones shall be prepared 

by qualified professional for continued slope stability, and approved by Land 

Use Management.  All costs to be born by the applicant. 

Subd. 8. The top or toe of bluffs shall be certified by a Minnesota Licensed Land Surveyor or 

Zoning Administrator. 

Subd. 9. Vegetation Alterations.  Vegetation alterations shall be subject to the standards found 

in Article 11, Section 7 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance.

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 5 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Mitchell Jackson (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of an accessory building less than 30 feet 
from the top of a bluff and grading/excavation for a retaining wall within the bluff impact zone.     
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Mitchell Jackson (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 14417 Welch Trail Welch, MN 55089 
Parcel: 46.028.2101 
Abbreviated Legal Description: The N ½ and Part of the S ½ of the NW ¼ of Section 28 TWP 113 
Range 16 in Welch Township 
Township Information: Welch Township provided an email acknowledging the variance request and 
did not convey any concerns regarding the application.   
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
GCZO Article 12 Bluffland Protection Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Mitchell Jackson (Owner) has applied for a variance to Bluffland Protection Standards to construct a 
26-foot x 30-foot accessory building 0 feet from the top of a bluff where 30 feet is required and 
perform grading/excavation work in the bluff impact zone to install a retaining wall. The existing 
dwelling was permitted and constructed in 1990, prior to Goodhue County’s adoption of bluffland 
protection standards (1995).  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Bluffland setbacks are intended to preserve and protect the sensitive physical features of the 
Bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion, and controlling the cutting of timber 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 5 

on the slopes and tops of bluffs.  

 The proposed location of the accessory building was chosen to avoid constructing a structure 
near steeper slopes on the property, to maintain adequate driveway access to the structure, 
avoid the drainfield north of the driveway, and to maintain access to the septic tanks east of 
the dwelling. The area for the new accessory building also has gentler slopes than the 
surrounding land.   

 The proposed location of the retaining wall was chosen to stabilize land below the proposed 
accessory building along a former cartway still used as a pathway by the owners within the 
steeper sloped area.   

 The dwelling is located in section 28 of Welch Township which includes areas zoned A-2, R-1 
(Suburban Residence District), MXH (Mixed Use Hamlet) in the village of Welch, and CR 
(Commercial Recreational) at Welch Village Ski Area. Portions of Section 28 are in Vasa 
Township, south of the Cannon River. The A-2 portions allow a maximum of 12 dwellings to 
be established, one per original ¼ ¼ section. Section 28 currently has 12 dwellings within 
the A2 portions.   

 The Applicant expressed willingness to abide by best management practices when 
constructing the structure and retaining wall. 

The request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official controls.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports providing more housing choices for rural 
residents and flexible dwelling choices.  

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes protecting and conserving natural 
landscapes and utilizing best management practices to enhance the health of environmentally 
sensitive areas.  

The proposed dwelling addition appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive 
Plan.  

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s desire to construct an accessory building and retaining wall is a reasonable 
use of property in the A-2 District.  

The proposed accessory building would be constructed 0-feet from the top of a bluff. The 
proposed retaining wall would be constructed within the bluff impact zone.   

 The parcel is an existing 109.79-acre lot which is a conforming lot size in the A-2 Zoning 
District (2-acre minimum).  

 The existing dwelling was constructed in 1990, prior to Goodhue County’s adoption of 
bluffland setback regulations.  

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the structure due to the 
location of the drainfield north of the driveway, septic tanks to the rear of the dwelling, and 
the desire to maintain adequate space for driveway access to the new structure. The location 
was also chosen because the area has gentler slopes than the surrounding land and was once 
a cleared area. 

During a site visit with Zoning staff and Soil and Water Conservation District staff, the 
Applicant indicated the area a retaining wall may be constructed along a former cartway 
south of the proposed structure. The retaining wall would stabilize the hillside and protect the 
existing path from excessive erosion.   

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Natural Resource Specialist Chad 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 5 

Hildebrand assisted staff in determining the location of the top of the bluff. Mr. Hildebrand 
noted that the proposed structure would not be detrimental to the top or toe of the bluff if 
best management practices were used to avoid excessive erosion down the bluff. The 
proposed retaining wall would help to prevent excessive erosion.   

SWCD staff and Zoning staff will review the building permit application for compliance with 
bluffland protection standards and establishment of best management practices prior to 
construction. 
 

 The dwelling is surrounded by Blufflands/woodlands on all sides with some acreage 
dedicated to row crop agriculture. The Cannon River runs east to west across Welch Trail 
south of the property. Several dwellings in the vicinity were constructed close to or within 
bluff impact zones and variances have been granted for structures to be constructed less than 
30 feet from bluffs in the immediate vicinity (Parcel 46.028.2102). 

The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Accessory buildings are a permissible use in the A-2 Zoning District. The request does not 
constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 
The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance 
 
     Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Mitchell Jackson (Owner) to Bluffland 
protection standards to allow construction of an accessory building 0 feet from the top of a bluff and 
associated grading/excavation for construction of a retaining wall within the bluff impact zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

ARTICLE 12   BLUFF LAND PROTECTION 

SECTION 1.    INTENT AND PURPOSE 
Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the bluffs that line the many rivers 

and valleys of the County.  These standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 

features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion and controlling the cutting of 

timber on the slopes and tops of the bluffs. 

SECTION 2.    SCOPE 
These standards shall regulate the setback of structures, sanitary waste treatment facilities and row 

crops from bluff impact zones to protect the existing and/or natural scenic values, significant 

historic sites, vegetation, soils, water and bedrock from disruption by man-made structures or 

facilities.  These standards will also regulate alterations of the natural vegetation and topography. 

Subd. 1. BLUFF.  A natural topographic feature such as a hill, cliff, or embankment having the 

following characteristics:  

A. The slope rises at least twenty-five (25) feet above the toe of the bluff; and  

B. The grade of the slope from the toe of the bluff to a point twenty-five (25) feet or 

more above the toe of the bluff averages thirty (30) percent or greater;  

C. An area with an average slope of less than twenty (20) percent over a horizontal 

distance of fifty (50) feet shall not be considered part of the bluff. 

Subd. 2. BLUFF IMPACT ZONE.  All of the land lying between the top of the bluff and the 

toe of the bluff. 

Subd. 3. SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC SITE.  Any archaeological site, standing structure, or 

other property that meets the criteria for eligibility to the National Register of Historic 

Places or is listed in the State Register of Historic Sites, or is determined to be an 

unplatted cemetery that falls under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 

307.08.  A historic site meets these criteria if it is presented listed on either register or 

if it is determined to meet the qualifications for listing after review by the Minnesota 

State Archaeologist or the Director of the Minnesota Historical Society. All unplatted 

cemeteries are automatically considered to be significant historic sites. 

Subd. 4. TOE OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from gentler to steeper slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the toe of the bluff shall be determined to be the lowest end of 

the lowest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 5. TOP OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from steeper to gentler slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the top of the bluff shall be determined to be the highest end 

of the highest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 6. VISUALLY INCONSPICUOUS.  Difficult to be seen and not readily noticeable 

from any point on the river or valley during the time when the leaves are on the 

deciduous trees. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

SECTION 3.    BOUNDARIES 
Subd. 1. The bluff land protection area shall include all areas with the following soil types as 

determined by the Goodhue County Soil Survey: 

A. N634E - Massbach-Schapville complex,18-35% slopes 

B. N598E - Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 18-35% slopes 

C. N594E - Chelsea loamy sand, 12-35% slopes 

D. N553E - Frankville-Nasset-Mt. Carroll complex, 18-35% slopes 

E. N635E - Frankville-Nasset-Downs complex, 18-35% slopes 

F. N642E - Frankville-Nasset complex, Oneota formation, 18-35% slopes 

G. N609E - Hawick sandy loam, 18-45% slopes 

H. M516E - Wangs-Wagen Prairie complex, 18-35% slopes 

I. M537E - Meridian-Bassett complex, 18-35% slopes 

J. N526F - Gale-Oak Center complex, 18-45% slopes 

K. M540F - Frontenac-Bellechester complex, 18-45% slopes 

L. N639F - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 20-45% slopes 

M. N631E - Schapville silt loam, 18-35% slopes 

N. N580G - Brodale, very flaggy-Bellechester-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% 

slopes 

O. N632G - Brodale, flaggy-Schapville complex, 18-80% slopes 

P. N638G - Brodale, flaggy-Bellechester complex, 30-70% slopes 

Q. N640G - Lacrescent, flaggy-Frontenac-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% slopes 

R. N641F - Brodale channery loam, 20-45% slopes, flaggy 

S. N639G - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 30-70% slopes 

T. M539F - Bellechester loamy sand, 18-45% slopes 

SECTION 4.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Developments and other land disturbing activities including: structures, accessory 

facilities, driveways, and parking areas shall not be placed within bluff impact zones 

except the following: 

A. Stairways and landings subject to provisions set forth in Subd. 6, of this Section.   

B. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths subject to provisions set forth in 

Subd. 6, of this Section.   

C. Uses identified in Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 1 

Subd. 2. Setback from top or toe of the bluff to any structure in any district shall be no less than 

thirty (30) feet. Exceptions may include structures allowed under Article 30, Section 

3, Subdivisions 6, 12, and 13. 

Subd. 3. The maximum height of any structure shall be twenty-five (25) feet from the highest 

natural grade touching foundation. Exceptions may include structures allowed under 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

the following provisions:  Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 13.  

Height for structures that may be permitted within bluff impact zones under these 

provisions shall be set forth within Conditional or Interim Use Permits 

Subd. 4. No person may begin a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying 

activity within three hundred (300) feet of the toe or top of a bluff without a 

conditional use permit. 

Subd. 5. Towers as defined in Article 17 (Wireless Communication Facilities) must be located 

outside of bluff impact zones and shall be subject to a minimum setback of 1.1 times 

the height of the tower from the top of a bluff and a minimum of 30 feet from the toe 

of a bluff. 

Subd. 6. All stairways and lifts on bluffs and in shoreland areas shall be visually inconspicuous.  

Stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 

A. Stairways and lifts must not exceed four (4) feet in width on residential lots. 

B. Landings for stairways and lifts on residential lots must not exceed thirty-two 

(32) square feet in area.  Landings larger than thirty-two (32) square feet may be 

used for public open space recreational properties. 

C. Canopies or roofs are not allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings. 

D. Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on 

posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, provided they are designed and built 

in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 

E. Stairways, lifts, and landings must be located in the most visually inconspicuous 

portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public water assuming 

Summer, leaf on conditions, whenever practical. 

F. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths are also allowed for achieving 

access to shore areas, provided that the dimensional and performance standards 

of sub-items A-E are complied with in addition to the requirements of the 

Minnesota Accessibility Code. 

Subd. 7. No grading, excavating or filling (including Mineral Extraction) within the bluff 

impact zones, except for approved erosion control measures.  Erosion control projects 

within the bluff impact zone shall comply with A. and B. below: 

A. Altered areas shall be stabilized to acceptable erosion control standards 

consistent with the field office technical guides of the Goodhue Soil and Water 

Conservation District and the USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

B. Plans to place fill or excavated materials in bluff impact zones shall be prepared 

by qualified professional for continued slope stability, and approved by Land 

Use Management.  All costs to be born by the applicant. 

Subd. 8. The top or toe of bluffs shall be certified by a Minnesota Licensed Land Surveyor or 

Zoning Administrator. 

Subd. 9. Vegetation Alterations.  Vegetation alterations shall be subject to the standards found 

in Article 11, Section 7 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance.

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 6 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Cindy Fox (Applicant) on behalf of the 
Gerald Fox Liv Trust (Owner), to Article 12 (Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of 
a shed 6.5-feet from the top of a bluff and perform grading/excavation work for a new dwelling 10-
feet into the bluff impact zone.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Cindy Fox (Applicant) Gerald Fox Liv Trust (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: TBD 140th Ave Way Welch MN 55089 
Parcel: 46.021.0700 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ of Section 21 TWP 113 Range 16 in 
Welch Township. 
Township Information: Welch Township has signed acknowledgment of the variance request and did 
not convey any concerns regarding the application.   
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
2020 Staff Letter 
GCZO Article 12 Bluffland Protection Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Cindy Fox (Applicant) has applied for a variance to Bluffland Protection Standards to construct an 
accessory building 6.5-feet from the top of a bluff where 30-feet is required, and perform 
grading/excavation work for a new dwelling 10-feet into the bluff impact zone. The Applicant has 
already installed a driveway on the property and prepared a pad for the proposed accessory building 
approximately 6.5-feet from the top of a bluff. Zoning and Soil and Water Conservation District staff 
performed a site visit to the property on June 1st, 2022 where staff verified the driveway and pad did 
not create any erosion issues and proper erosion control measures were used during construction. 
Grading/Excavation work on an area over 10,000 square feet not associated with permitted structure 
construction typically requires an Administrative Land Alteration Permit from the Zoning 
Administrator.  
 
The County Zoning Administrator performed a site visit on October 27, 2020 and determined the 
property qualified as an Abandoned Homestead under Article 11, Section 32 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance. If an Abandoned Homestead is located on a property, that parcel is allowed to 
establish a replacement dwelling regardless of current density restrictions. When evaluating a site, 
there must be clear, physical evidence of a dwelling and the property itself must contain features 
such as fencing, foundation, or other apparent articles characteristic of a previously established 
homestead. Abandoned Homesteads must meet the minimum size regulations, yard requirements, 
road access standards, Bluffland, Shoreland and Floodplain requirements, and the replacement 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 6 

dwelling must be placed as near to the Abandoned Homestead as practical.  
 
A letter from staff in 2020 is included in the packet which describes the site visit and classification of 
the site as an Abandoned Homestead. The foundation that was discovered was located within the 
bluff impact zone.  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 Bluffland setbacks and restrictions on development in the bluff impact zone are intended to 
preserve and protect the sensitive physical features of the Bluffs by regulating development, 
preventing erosion, and controlling the cutting of timber on the slopes and tops of bluffs.  

 The proposed location of the new dwelling was chosen due to its proximity to the Abandoned 
Homestead as required by Article 11 Section 32.  

 The Applicant expressed willingness to abide by best management practices when 
constructing the accessory building and dwelling and performing grading/excavation work.  

The request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official controls.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports providing more housing choices for rural 
residents and flexible dwelling choices. 

 The Comprehensive Plan also suggests directing the location of dwelling sites in areas that 
minimize loss or conversion of prime agriculture soils.   

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes protecting and conserving natural 
landscapes and utilizing best management practices to enhance the health of environmentally 
sensitive areas.  

The proposed dwelling and accessory building appear consistent with the Goodhue County 
Comprehensive Plan if best management practices are used to prevent excessive erosion.  

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s desire to construct a dwelling and accessory structure is a reasonable use of 
property in the A-2 District.  

 The parcel is an existing 13-acre lot which is a conforming lot size in the A-2 Zoning District 
(2-acre minimum).  

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the dwelling due to the 
requirement that it be as close to the abandoned homestead as practical, the existing 
topography, and to provide adequate space for a well and septic system.  

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Water Planner Chad Hildebrand 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 6 

reviewed the proposal and assisted staff in determining the location of the bluff. Mr. 
Hildebrand noted that the proposed structures and excavation/grading work is not 
anticipated to be detrimental to the bluff if best management practices are used. Mr. 
Hildebrand recommended installing a silt fence or biologs to protect against erosion before 
construction begins. The proposed area for the dwelling will need to prepare the adjacent 
gully in order to accommodate an increase in stormwater flow.  

SWCD staff and Zoning staff will review the building permit application for compliance with 
bluffland protection standards and establishment of best management practices prior to 
construction. 

 
 The site is surrounded by Blufflands/woodlands in all directions. Surrounding properties are 

all zoned A-2 (General Agriculture District).There are several properties along County 7 Blvd 
that may have structures/dwellings too close to a bluff.  

  The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Dwellings and accessory structures are a permissible use in the A-2 Zoning District. The 
request does not constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 
The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance 
 
     Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Cindy Fox (Applicant) on behalf of the Gerald 
Fox Livable Trust (Owner) to Bluffland protection standards to allow construction of an accessory 
structure 6.5-feet from the top of a bluff, and associated excavation/grading for construction of a 
dwelling 10-feet into the bluff impact zone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

ARTICLE 12   BLUFF LAND PROTECTION 

SECTION 1.    INTENT AND PURPOSE 
Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the bluffs that line the many rivers 

and valleys of the County.  These standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 

features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion and controlling the cutting of 

timber on the slopes and tops of the bluffs. 

SECTION 2.    SCOPE 
These standards shall regulate the setback of structures, sanitary waste treatment facilities and row 

crops from bluff impact zones to protect the existing and/or natural scenic values, significant 

historic sites, vegetation, soils, water and bedrock from disruption by man-made structures or 

facilities.  These standards will also regulate alterations of the natural vegetation and topography. 

Subd. 1. BLUFF.  A natural topographic feature such as a hill, cliff, or embankment having the 

following characteristics:  

A. The slope rises at least twenty-five (25) feet above the toe of the bluff; and  

B. The grade of the slope from the toe of the bluff to a point twenty-five (25) feet or 

more above the toe of the bluff averages thirty (30) percent or greater;  

C. An area with an average slope of less than twenty (20) percent over a horizontal 

distance of fifty (50) feet shall not be considered part of the bluff. 

Subd. 2. BLUFF IMPACT ZONE.  All of the land lying between the top of the bluff and the 

toe of the bluff. 

Subd. 3. SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC SITE.  Any archaeological site, standing structure, or 

other property that meets the criteria for eligibility to the National Register of Historic 

Places or is listed in the State Register of Historic Sites, or is determined to be an 

unplatted cemetery that falls under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 

307.08.  A historic site meets these criteria if it is presented listed on either register or 

if it is determined to meet the qualifications for listing after review by the Minnesota 

State Archaeologist or the Director of the Minnesota Historical Society. All unplatted 

cemeteries are automatically considered to be significant historic sites. 

Subd. 4. TOE OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from gentler to steeper slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the toe of the bluff shall be determined to be the lowest end of 

the lowest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 5. TOP OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from steeper to gentler slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the top of the bluff shall be determined to be the highest end 

of the highest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 6. VISUALLY INCONSPICUOUS.  Difficult to be seen and not readily noticeable 

from any point on the river or valley during the time when the leaves are on the 

deciduous trees. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

SECTION 3.    BOUNDARIES 
Subd. 1. The bluff land protection area shall include all areas with the following soil types as 

determined by the Goodhue County Soil Survey: 

A. N634E - Massbach-Schapville complex,18-35% slopes 

B. N598E - Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 18-35% slopes 

C. N594E - Chelsea loamy sand, 12-35% slopes 

D. N553E - Frankville-Nasset-Mt. Carroll complex, 18-35% slopes 

E. N635E - Frankville-Nasset-Downs complex, 18-35% slopes 

F. N642E - Frankville-Nasset complex, Oneota formation, 18-35% slopes 

G. N609E - Hawick sandy loam, 18-45% slopes 

H. M516E - Wangs-Wagen Prairie complex, 18-35% slopes 

I. M537E - Meridian-Bassett complex, 18-35% slopes 

J. N526F - Gale-Oak Center complex, 18-45% slopes 

K. M540F - Frontenac-Bellechester complex, 18-45% slopes 

L. N639F - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 20-45% slopes 

M. N631E - Schapville silt loam, 18-35% slopes 

N. N580G - Brodale, very flaggy-Bellechester-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% 

slopes 

O. N632G - Brodale, flaggy-Schapville complex, 18-80% slopes 

P. N638G - Brodale, flaggy-Bellechester complex, 30-70% slopes 

Q. N640G - Lacrescent, flaggy-Frontenac-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% slopes 

R. N641F - Brodale channery loam, 20-45% slopes, flaggy 

S. N639G - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 30-70% slopes 

T. M539F - Bellechester loamy sand, 18-45% slopes 

SECTION 4.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Developments and other land disturbing activities including: structures, accessory 

facilities, driveways, and parking areas shall not be placed within bluff impact zones 

except the following: 

A. Stairways and landings subject to provisions set forth in Subd. 6, of this Section.   

B. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths subject to provisions set forth in 

Subd. 6, of this Section.   

C. Uses identified in Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 1 

Subd. 2. Setback from top or toe of the bluff to any structure in any district shall be no less than 

thirty (30) feet. Exceptions may include structures allowed under Article 30, Section 

3, Subdivisions 6, 12, and 13. 

Subd. 3. The maximum height of any structure shall be twenty-five (25) feet from the highest 

natural grade touching foundation. Exceptions may include structures allowed under 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

the following provisions:  Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 13.  

Height for structures that may be permitted within bluff impact zones under these 

provisions shall be set forth within Conditional or Interim Use Permits 

Subd. 4. No person may begin a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying 

activity within three hundred (300) feet of the toe or top of a bluff without a 

conditional use permit. 

Subd. 5. Towers as defined in Article 17 (Wireless Communication Facilities) must be located 

outside of bluff impact zones and shall be subject to a minimum setback of 1.1 times 

the height of the tower from the top of a bluff and a minimum of 30 feet from the toe 

of a bluff. 

Subd. 6. All stairways and lifts on bluffs and in shoreland areas shall be visually inconspicuous.  

Stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 

A. Stairways and lifts must not exceed four (4) feet in width on residential lots. 

B. Landings for stairways and lifts on residential lots must not exceed thirty-two 

(32) square feet in area.  Landings larger than thirty-two (32) square feet may be 

used for public open space recreational properties. 

C. Canopies or roofs are not allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings. 

D. Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on 

posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, provided they are designed and built 

in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 

E. Stairways, lifts, and landings must be located in the most visually inconspicuous 

portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public water assuming 

Summer, leaf on conditions, whenever practical. 

F. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths are also allowed for achieving 

access to shore areas, provided that the dimensional and performance standards 

of sub-items A-E are complied with in addition to the requirements of the 

Minnesota Accessibility Code. 

Subd. 7. No grading, excavating or filling (including Mineral Extraction) within the bluff 

impact zones, except for approved erosion control measures.  Erosion control projects 

within the bluff impact zone shall comply with A. and B. below: 

A. Altered areas shall be stabilized to acceptable erosion control standards 

consistent with the field office technical guides of the Goodhue Soil and Water 

Conservation District and the USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

B. Plans to place fill or excavated materials in bluff impact zones shall be prepared 

by qualified professional for continued slope stability, and approved by Land 

Use Management.  All costs to be born by the applicant. 

Subd. 8. The top or toe of bluffs shall be certified by a Minnesota Licensed Land Surveyor or 

Zoning Administrator. 

Subd. 9. Vegetation Alterations.  Vegetation alterations shall be subject to the standards found 

in Article 11, Section 7 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance.

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance, submitted by Grant Voth (Owner), to Article 12 
(Bluffland Protection Standards) to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8 feet from the top 
and toe of a bluff and associated excavating/grading 12 feet into the bluff impact zone.     
 
Application Information: 
Applicant(s): Grant Voth (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 28935 Circle S RD Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel: 34.001.1000 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the SE ¼ of the SW ¼ of Section 01 TWP 112 Range 14 in 
Hay Creek Township. 
Township Information: Hay Creek Township has signed acknowledgment of the variance request and 
did not convey any concerns regarding the application.   
Zoning District: A-2 (General Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
GCZO Article 12 Bluffland Protection Standards 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance:  
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Grant Voth (Owner) has applied for a variance to Bluffland Protection Standards to construct a 
replacement dwelling 8 feet from the top and toe of a bluff and perform grading/excavation work 12 
feet into the bluff impact zone.  
 
The previous dwelling was built sometime before 1938, (according to historical GIS images) and was 
demolished in 2014. The previous dwelling was constructed too close to the east property line and 
within 30 feet of a bluff. The proposed replacement dwelling will meet GCZO property line setbacks.     
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

 Bluffland setbacks and restrictions on grading/excavating in the bluff impact zone are 
intended to preserve and protect the sensitive physical features of the Bluffs by regulating 
development, preventing erosion, and controlling the cutting of timber on the slopes and tops 
of bluffs.  

 The proposed location of the replacement dwelling was chosen due to the existing 
topography, the location of the previous dwelling, and the existence of an existing driveway 
for access. The existing access driveway is in good condition and is not located within the 
bluff impact zone.   

 The Applicant expressed willingness to abide by best management practices when 
constructing the addition and performing grading/excavation work. 

The request appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official controls.  

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports providing more housing choices for rural 
residents and flexible dwelling choices.  

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also promotes the location of replacement 
dwelling sites in areas that minimize the loss or conversion of prime agricultural soils.  

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan also prioritizes protecting and conserving natural 
landscapes and utilizing best management practices to enhance the health of environmentally 
sensitive areas.  

The proposed replacement dwelling and excavation/grading work appear consistent with the 
Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan if best management practices are used to prevent 
excessive erosion.  

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s desire to construct a replacement dwelling is a reasonable use of property in 
the A-2 District. Section 01 of Hay Creek Township contains 11 dwellings where a maximum 
of 12 are allowed, one dwelling per original ¼ ¼. 

The proposed replacement dwelling would be constructed 8 feet from the top and toe of the 
bluffs at its closest point. The proposed grading and excavation work on the northwest edge 
of the bluff would be required to provide wider access to the proposed replacement dwelling 
and proposed tuck-under garage (areas 1 and 2 on the submitted site plan). The excavation 
work and grading on the southwest portion of the bluff would be needed to accommodate 
equipment used to maintain the property such as skid loaders, mowers, etc. (Area 3)     

 The parcel is an existing 13-acre lot which is a conforming lot size in the A-2 Zoning District 
(2-acre minimum).  

 The previous dwelling was constructed sometime before 1938 within 30 feet of a bluff. 
Goodhue County did not enact zoning regulations until the 1970s and Bluffland regulations 
were not included in the County’s Zoning Ordinance until the mid-1990s.   

 The Applicant stated that there are no alternative locations for the replacement dwelling due 
to the existing topography, the need for a new septic system, and the desire to use the existing 
well and garage.  While the applicant does own approximately 7.89-acres to the east this 
property is in a different ¼ ¼ of section 01 which is already occupied by a dwelling at 28639 
Circle S RD, owned by Bradley and Susan Cushing.  

 Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District Water Planner Chad Hildebrand 
reviewed the proposal and assisted staff in determining the location of the top and toe of the 
bluff. Mr. Hildebrand recommended installing a silt fence on the eastern side of the proposed 
replacement dwelling and beyond the project site before construction. For the proposed 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

excavation and grading into the bluff impact zone, Mr. Hildebrand recommended installing a 
silt fence away from the toe of the bluff before any work begins. To stabilize the area after 
construction, Mr. Hildebrand recommended working with a professional to either install a 
retaining wall or re-grade the bluff to a 5:1 slope and mulch/hydro-seed the exposed soil. 

SWCD staff and Zoning staff will review the building permit application for compliance with 
bluffland protection standards and establishment of best management practices prior to 
construction. 

 The property is surrounded by Blufflands/woodlands in all directions. Surrounding land uses 
consist of row-crop agriculture and medium-density residential zoned A-2 (General 
Agriculture District). Several dwellings in the vicinity were constructed close to or within 
bluff impact zones. 

The request appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality. 

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Replacement dwellings are a permissible use in the A-2 Zoning District. The request does not 
constitute a use variance.  

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 
The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 
granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance 
 
     Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Grant Voth (Owner) to Bluffland protection 
standards to allow construction of a replacement dwelling 8 feet from the top and toe of a bluff, and 
associated excavation/grading 12 feet into the bluff impact zone.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

ARTICLE 12   BLUFF LAND PROTECTION 

SECTION 1.    INTENT AND PURPOSE 
Goodhue County recognizes the historic and economic values of the bluffs that line the many rivers 

and valleys of the County.  These standards set out to protect and preserve the sensitive physical 

features of the bluffs by regulating development, preventing erosion and controlling the cutting of 

timber on the slopes and tops of the bluffs. 

SECTION 2.    SCOPE 
These standards shall regulate the setback of structures, sanitary waste treatment facilities and row 

crops from bluff impact zones to protect the existing and/or natural scenic values, significant 

historic sites, vegetation, soils, water and bedrock from disruption by man-made structures or 

facilities.  These standards will also regulate alterations of the natural vegetation and topography. 

Subd. 1. BLUFF.  A natural topographic feature such as a hill, cliff, or embankment having the 

following characteristics:  

A. The slope rises at least twenty-five (25) feet above the toe of the bluff; and  

B. The grade of the slope from the toe of the bluff to a point twenty-five (25) feet or 

more above the toe of the bluff averages thirty (30) percent or greater;  

C. An area with an average slope of less than twenty (20) percent over a horizontal 

distance of fifty (50) feet shall not be considered part of the bluff. 

Subd. 2. BLUFF IMPACT ZONE.  All of the land lying between the top of the bluff and the 

toe of the bluff. 

Subd. 3. SIGNIFICANT HISTORIC SITE.  Any archaeological site, standing structure, or 

other property that meets the criteria for eligibility to the National Register of Historic 

Places or is listed in the State Register of Historic Sites, or is determined to be an 

unplatted cemetery that falls under the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 

307.08.  A historic site meets these criteria if it is presented listed on either register or 

if it is determined to meet the qualifications for listing after review by the Minnesota 

State Archaeologist or the Director of the Minnesota Historical Society. All unplatted 

cemeteries are automatically considered to be significant historic sites. 

Subd. 4. TOE OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from gentler to steeper slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the toe of the bluff shall be determined to be the lowest end of 

the lowest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 5. TOP OF THE BLUFF.  The point on a bluff where there is, as visually observed, a 

clearly identifiable break in the slope, from steeper to gentler slope above.  If no break 

in the slope is apparent, the top of the bluff shall be determined to be the highest end 

of the highest fifty (50) foot segment that exceeds twenty (20) percent slope. 

Subd. 6. VISUALLY INCONSPICUOUS.  Difficult to be seen and not readily noticeable 

from any point on the river or valley during the time when the leaves are on the 

deciduous trees. 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

SECTION 3.    BOUNDARIES 
Subd. 1. The bluff land protection area shall include all areas with the following soil types as 

determined by the Goodhue County Soil Survey: 

A. N634E - Massbach-Schapville complex,18-35% slopes 

B. N598E - Winneshiek-Waucoma complex, 18-35% slopes 

C. N594E - Chelsea loamy sand, 12-35% slopes 

D. N553E - Frankville-Nasset-Mt. Carroll complex, 18-35% slopes 

E. N635E - Frankville-Nasset-Downs complex, 18-35% slopes 

F. N642E - Frankville-Nasset complex, Oneota formation, 18-35% slopes 

G. N609E - Hawick sandy loam, 18-45% slopes 

H. M516E - Wangs-Wagen Prairie complex, 18-35% slopes 

I. M537E - Meridian-Bassett complex, 18-35% slopes 

J. N526F - Gale-Oak Center complex, 18-45% slopes 

K. M540F - Frontenac-Bellechester complex, 18-45% slopes 

L. N639F - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 20-45% slopes 

M. N631E - Schapville silt loam, 18-35% slopes 

N. N580G - Brodale, very flaggy-Bellechester-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% 

slopes 

O. N632G - Brodale, flaggy-Schapville complex, 18-80% slopes 

P. N638G - Brodale, flaggy-Bellechester complex, 30-70% slopes 

Q. N640G - Lacrescent, flaggy-Frontenac-Rock outcrop complex, 45-90% slopes 

R. N641F - Brodale channery loam, 20-45% slopes, flaggy 

S. N639G - Frontenac-Lacrescent complex, 30-70% slopes 

T. M539F - Bellechester loamy sand, 18-45% slopes 

SECTION 4.    GENERAL REGULATIONS 
Subd. 1. Developments and other land disturbing activities including: structures, accessory 

facilities, driveways, and parking areas shall not be placed within bluff impact zones 

except the following: 

A. Stairways and landings subject to provisions set forth in Subd. 6, of this Section.   

B. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths subject to provisions set forth in 

Subd. 6, of this Section.   

C. Uses identified in Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 1 

Subd. 2. Setback from top or toe of the bluff to any structure in any district shall be no less than 

thirty (30) feet. Exceptions may include structures allowed under Article 30, Section 

3, Subdivisions 6, 12, and 13. 

Subd. 3. The maximum height of any structure shall be twenty-five (25) feet from the highest 

natural grade touching foundation. Exceptions may include structures allowed under 



Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance Article 12      Amended February 7, 2017 

the following provisions:  Article 30; Section 3; Subd. 6, Subd. 12, and Subd. 13.  

Height for structures that may be permitted within bluff impact zones under these 

provisions shall be set forth within Conditional or Interim Use Permits 

Subd. 4. No person may begin a mining or quarrying activity or expand a mining or quarrying 

activity within three hundred (300) feet of the toe or top of a bluff without a 

conditional use permit. 

Subd. 5. Towers as defined in Article 17 (Wireless Communication Facilities) must be located 

outside of bluff impact zones and shall be subject to a minimum setback of 1.1 times 

the height of the tower from the top of a bluff and a minimum of 30 feet from the toe 

of a bluff. 

Subd. 6. All stairways and lifts on bluffs and in shoreland areas shall be visually inconspicuous.  

Stairways and lifts shall meet the following design requirements: 

A. Stairways and lifts must not exceed four (4) feet in width on residential lots. 

B. Landings for stairways and lifts on residential lots must not exceed thirty-two 

(32) square feet in area.  Landings larger than thirty-two (32) square feet may be 

used for public open space recreational properties. 

C. Canopies or roofs are not allowed on stairways, lifts, or landings. 

D. Stairways, lifts, and landings may be either constructed above the ground on 

posts or pilings, or placed into the ground, provided they are designed and built 

in a manner that ensures control of soil erosion. 

E. Stairways, lifts, and landings must be located in the most visually inconspicuous 

portions of lots, as viewed from the surface of the public water assuming 

Summer, leaf on conditions, whenever practical. 

F. Facilities such as ramps, lifts, or mobility paths are also allowed for achieving 

access to shore areas, provided that the dimensional and performance standards 

of sub-items A-E are complied with in addition to the requirements of the 

Minnesota Accessibility Code. 

Subd. 7. No grading, excavating or filling (including Mineral Extraction) within the bluff 

impact zones, except for approved erosion control measures.  Erosion control projects 

within the bluff impact zone shall comply with A. and B. below: 

A. Altered areas shall be stabilized to acceptable erosion control standards 

consistent with the field office technical guides of the Goodhue Soil and Water 

Conservation District and the USDA, Natural Resources Conservation Service. 

B. Plans to place fill or excavated materials in bluff impact zones shall be prepared 

by qualified professional for continued slope stability, and approved by Land 

Use Management.  All costs to be born by the applicant. 

Subd. 8. The top or toe of bluffs shall be certified by a Minnesota Licensed Land Surveyor or 

Zoning Administrator. 

Subd. 9. Vegetation Alterations.  Vegetation alterations shall be subject to the standards found 

in Article 11, Section 7 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance.

 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Board of Adjustment 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: June 27, 2022 
Report date: June 17, 2022 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for Variance to Maximum Accessory Building Size 
Request for Variance, submitted by Jeffrey Davis (owner) to R1 Zoning District standards to allow 
construction of an accessory structure greater than 2100 square feet.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicants: Jeffrey Davis (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: 867 Sciota Trail Randolph, MN 55065 
Parcel: 41.018.0202 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Part of the N ½ of the NE ¼ of Section 18 TWP 112 Range 18 in 
Stanton Township 
Township Information: Stanton Township has signed acknowledgement of the request and approved 
a variance request for the accessory building’s size at their May 2022 meeting. The variance was 
approved contingent on County variance approval.  
Zoning District: R1 (Suburban Residence District) 
 
Attachments and Links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
Jeffrey Davis (Applicant) has applied for a variance to R-1 Accessory Structure Standards to 
construct a 3,200 square foot (50-foot x 64-foot) post-frame style shed for storage.  
 
Article 24 Section 4 of the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance limits detached accessory structures 
in the R-1 District to a maximum size of 1,500 square feet on lots less than 1-acre and 2,100 square 
feet on properties that contain 1 or more acres. Mr. Davis’s property is currently 5.58-acres.  
 
Variance Standards: 
Variances shall only be permitted when they are in harmony with the general purposes and intent of 
the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance and when consistent with the adopted comprehensive plan. 
Variances may be granted when the applicant establishes “practical difficulties” exist in complying 
with the existing official controls. Practical difficulties mean the applicant proposes to use the 
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control, the plight of the landowner is 
due to circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if 
granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. Economic considerations alone do not 
constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Draft Findings of Fact: 
 
1) Harmony with the general purposes and intent of the official control: 

 The R-1 maximum accessory structure standards are intended to prevent the construction of 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

large-scale accessory buildings on the smaller lot sizes typical of R-1 districts which may 
cause aesthetic issues, stormwater complications, or encourage uses 
(commercial/industrial/etc.) that may be undesirable in a compact residential setting.  

 The property is 5.58-acres, five times larger than the R-1 lot size minimum of 1-acre. The 
structure would be for residential use and would be setback over 150-feet from the edge of the 
Sciota TRL Right-of-Way (60-foot minimum). The large setback and existing tree coverage 
along the north and east side of the project area would soften the visual impacts to the 
neighboring landowners. Chad Hildebrand, SWCD Water Planner, reviewed the proposal and 
did not identify any stormwater issues.    

 Given the Applicant’s large lot size in the R-1 District, the increased setback of the structure 
from the Right-of-Way, and the limited potential for stormwater control issues, the 
Applicant’s proposal appears in harmony with the purpose and intent of the official control. 

2) The variance request is consistent with the adopted Comprehensive Plan: 

 The Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan supports the use of existing rural residences and 
associated accessory buildings to provide rural living opportunities in the unincorporated 
areas of Goodhue County. The Plan also supports economic growth within the County by 
providing a basis for reasonable and orderly residential development. 

The Applicant’s request appears consistent with the Goodhue County Comprehensive Plan. 

3) There are “practical difficulties” in complying with the official control (the 
applicant proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an 
official control, the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the 
property not created by the landowner, and the variance, if granted, will not alter 
the essential character of the locality): 

 The Applicant’s request to construct a 3,200 square foot (50-foot x 64-foot) accessory 
building to accomodate storage is a reasonable use of property in the R1 District.  

 The Applicant’s 5.58-acre parcel is a conforming lot size in the R1 District (1-acre minimum).  

 The structure would meet all other GCZO requirements including setbacks from property 
lines and structure coverage maximums (less than 20% structure coverage).  

The Applicant stated that due to the location of the well, septic, and dwelling, there is only 
one feasible spot to accomodate an accessory building.   

While the Zoning Ordinance limits the maximum size of a detached accessory structure on 
an R1 lot, it does not limit the quantity that can be constructed. A property owner would be 
limited on the number of accessory structures that could be built on a parcel by the 20% 
“structure coverage” requirements. 

 Mr. Davis’ property is located in a rural cluster of residential properties. The property is 
surrounded by woodlands to the north and east. Directly south are A-2 zoned properties 
(General Agriculture District), and row-crop agriculture is the primary use of the land to the 
south and west.  

A post-frame style shed would not be uncharacteristic within this rural-residential setting and 
nearby properties have existing structures of similar construction.  

The request for variance appears unlikely to alter the essential character of the locality.  

4) No variance may be granted that would allow any use that is not allowed in the 
zoning district in which the subject property is located.  

 Detached accessory structures for residential storage are permissible in the R1 district. The 
proposal does not constitute a use variance. 

 

The draft Findings of Fact shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed at the Board of Adjustment 
meeting and public hearing. 
 

The Board should specify the facts and reasons that are the basis of the Board’s determination. In 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

granting a variance, the Board of Adjustment may impose conditions directly related to, and bearing a 
rough proportionality with, the impact(s) created by the variance. 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

APPROVE the variance request, submitted by Jeffrey Davis (Owner), to R1 Zoning District 
standards to allow construction of a 3,200 square foot (50-foot x 64-foot) post-frame style shed.  
 
 
 
 
 


















	Roll Call
	1. Approval of Agenda
	Motion carried 5:0
	Motion carried 5:0
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	No one spoke for or against the request.
	4Motion by Fox, seconded by Tebbe, for the Board of Adjustment to:
	APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Lisa Shoberg-Weiner & Allen Weiner (Owners) to A-1 Zoning District standards to construct a 48-foot 6-inch by 12-foot 2-inch bedroom/kitchen addition no less than 56-feet from the County 12 BLVD Right-o...

	6Motion by Tebbe, seconded by Rechtzigel, for the Board of Adjustment to:
	0F8Motion by Fox, seconded by Tebbe, for the Board of Adjustment to:
	Roll Call
	1. Approval of Agenda
	Motion carried 5:0
	Chair Knott opened the Public Hearing
	No one spoke for or against the request.
	3Motion by Tebbe, seconded by Rechtzigel, for the Board of Adjustment to:
	APPROVE the request for a variance, submitted by Cohlman Rutschow (Owner) to Bluffland
	protection standards to allow construction of a dwelling addition no less than 28.5-feet from the toe
	of a bluff.




